ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE

LEG SLATI VE BUDGET AND AUDI T COW TTEE

February 25, 2014
6:11 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Chair
Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senator dick Bishop

Senator Cathy G essel

Senat or Donal d O son

Representative M ke Hawker, Vice Chair

Representative Al an Austernan
Representati ve Bob Herron
Representative Kurt O son
Represent ati ve Andy Josephson

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy (al ternate)

Representative Scott Kawasaki (alternate)
Representative Bill Stoltze (alternate)

COW TTEE CALENDAR

APPROVAL OF M NUTES

AUDI TS

EXECUTI VE SESSI ON

AUDI T REQUESTS

OTHER COW TTEE BUSI NESS

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER

KRI STI N CURTI S

Legi sl ative Auditor

Di vision of Legislative Audit

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

BUD COWM TTEE -1-

February 25, 2014



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provided informati on and answered questions
regarding the Statewide Single audit report, the audit requests,
and the requests for contract funding.

LAURA PI ERRE, St aff

Senat or Anna Fai rcl ough

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during discussion of the
upcom ng public heari ng.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
6:11:48 PM

CHAI R ANNA FAI RCLOUGH called the Legislative Budget and Audit
Commttee neeting to order at 6:11 p.m Senat ors Fai rcl ough,
A son, G essel, Bishop, and Meyer, and Representatives Hawker,
Josephson, Herron, and Austerman were present at the call to
order. Representative O son arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

Approval of M nutes

6:12: 33 PM

CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH announced that the first order of Dbusiness
woul d be approval of the mnutes.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER made a notion to approve the mnutes of
January 13, 2014. There being no objection, the mnutes from
the meeting of January 13, 2014 were approved.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER nmade a notion to approve the mnutes of
January 28, 2014. There being no objection, the mnutes from
the neeting of January 28, 2014 were approved.

Audi ts
6: 13: 38 PM
CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH announced that the next order of business would

be the Alaska State Legislature financial statenments and audit
report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

BUD COWM TTEE - 2- February 25, 2014



KRISTIN CURTIS, Legislative Auditor, Division of Legislative
Audit, Alaska State Legislature, presented the independent audit
of the Alaska State Legislature schedule of appropriations,
expenditures, and encunbrances, as well as the schedule of the
revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. She rel ayed
that this was an independent audit, conducted each year. She
reported that the independent auditor provided an unnodified
opi nion, which indicated a belief that the schedules were free
from material msstatenent. She directed attention to the
letter to those charged with governance, which was the standard
audit letter required to be issued along with the financial
statenents. [Included in nmenbers' packets] She noted that, as
this included information on the Legislative Budget and Audit
Committee expenses and revenues, it was included for the
conmittee information.

Executi ve Sessi on

6: 14: 46 PM

CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH announced that the commttee would nobve into
Executive Session to discuss confidential audit reports.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER made a notion to nove to executive session
for the purpose of discussing confidential audit reports under
AS 24.20.301. There being no objection, the comrittee went into
executive session at 6:15 p. m

6:37:17 PM

CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH brought the commttee back to order at 6:37
p. m Senators Fairclough, Qdson, Gessel, Bishop, and Myer,
and Representatives Hawker, Josephson, Herron, dson, and
Austerman were present at the call to order.

6: 37: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER made a notion for the prelimnary audit
for the Statewide Single Audit for the Fiscal Year ended June
30, 2013 to be released to the appropriate agency for response.
There being no objection, it was so ordered.

Audit Reqguests

6: 38: 07 PM

BUD COWM TTEE - 3- February 25, 2014



CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH announced that the next order of business would
be audit requests from both Representative Austerman and
Representative d son. She directed attention to a letter
submitted to the commttee by Representative Austernman dated
February 12, 2014. [Included in nenbers' packets].

6: 38: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERVAN expl ained his request for an audit of
Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF) for

its contracting for ship repairs. He stated that the Al aska
ferry, MV Tustunmena, went into dry dock for its normal repairs,
a project which wusually took six to eight weeks, but

subsequently took nore than a year. He reported that his office
had requested information but had not received clear responses
for the reasons to the del ay. He offered his belief that there
was a "breakdown in the procedures that the DOI[ &PF] uses to get
to where they need to be." He directed attention to the three
areas of <concern listed in the aforenentioned letter. He
requested an audit of DOT&PF for its methods of contracting for
shi p repairs.

6:39: 36 PM

SENATOR MEYER expressed his wunderstanding that the ferry
mai nt enance was perforned i n Ketchikan.

REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERVAN clarified that the statute established
that the work needed to be perforned in-state, and that the
option was for either Ketchikan or Seward, as the two shipyards.

SENATOR MEYER asked how t he choi ce was det er m ned.
REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERMAN replied that he did not know.

CHAI R FAIRCLOUGH read the three itens of the audit request from
Represent ati ve Austerman:

Det erm ne whether the contract award to the Seward
Shi pyard conplied with federal and state procurenent
laws and was in the State’s best interest.

Determine if technical specifications that supported
the bid docunents were adequate to allow for the
procurenent of the expertise necessary to fully
address the refurbishnment/overhaul .

BUD COWM TTEE -4- February 25, 2014



Eval uat e managenent of the MV Tustunena

ref urbi shnent/overhaul by DOTPF fromstart to finish
Determine if the project was efficiently managed in
order to achieve the project in the nost cost
effective and time sensitive manner.

CHAIR FAIRCLOUGH asked Ms. Curtis if this audit request was
possible, and, if so, when the finished report would be
avai |l abl e.

6:41: 28 PM

M5. CURTIS, in response, said that it could be done and there
were staff avail able. She pointed out that it wuld be
necessary to do some prelimnary work to determ ne any pending
[itigation. She suggested that the usual recourse would be to
wait until the litigation was conplete before commencing with an
audi t.

6:42: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked if the audit would be limted to the
points |isted by Representative Austernman.

M5. CURTIS explained that her division tried "to stick with the
objectives,"” although the conmttee could add a request to
expand on anything that canme to its attention during the audit.

REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERMAN shared that he and M. Curtis had
di scussed the proposed audit and the breadth of its requests.
He declared that lawsuits were expected. He stated that the
| arger question was to determne whether this was the best
system for contracting.

6:44: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER suggested addi ng anot her request for the
auditor to report to the Legislative Budget and Audit Conmittee
and the Al aska State Legislature on any other matters deened to
be i nportant.

CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH expressed agreenent wth incorporating this
into the audit request. She offered her belief that a
prelimnary review could place the auditor in the way of the
I aw.

BUD COWM TTEE - 5- February 25, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE AUSTERVMAN expressed his agreenent and suggested
that an audit should be initiated, as a lawsuit would stop the
audi t.

CHAIR FAIRCLOUGH asked why the actual DOT&PF processes for
putting ships into dry-dock was not being exam ned.

6:46: 53 PM

M5. CURTIS explained that, as there had been an audit on the
overall process three years previously, there was a good
understanding for the procurenent process for overhauls and
ref urbi shnent s. She shared that her division would build on
this know edge.

CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH asked if there were any objections to noving
forward with an audit, with the understanding that litigation
woul d del ay conpl etion of the project.

6:47: 33 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked if any conplaint had been fil ed,
and whether the audit request by Representative Austernman woul d

pre-date any formal conplaint.

M5. CURTIS replied that she had contacted the DOT&PF and asked

for an update on the status of any litigation. She reported
that an admnistrative process was currently in play, although
no formal litigation had been filed as yet.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON decl ared that it was best to avoid "the
perception of piling on." He shared that very often docunents
in litigation became public when filed. He pointed out that
l[itigation could take years with trial and appeal.

6: 48: 54 PM

M5. CURTIS, in response, said that in the event of l|itigation
the audit could be tabled, and subsequently tracked and re-
visited for wupdates to its status. She opined that the
guestions generating the audit would remain valid regardl ess of
any tinme period.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON offered his belief that any litigation

could take time, and he encouraged noving forward wth
prelimnary work on the audit request.

BUD COWM TTEE - 6- February 25, 2014



6:50:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER made a notion for approval to the audit
request, as anended, of +the Departnment of Transportation &
Public Facilities managenent of the MV Tustunena refurbishnment
and overhaul. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

6:51: 08 PM

CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH announced that the next order of business would
be a request for an audit as described by a letter submtted by
Representative O son, dated Septenber 27, 2013. [I ncluded in
menber s’ packet s]

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON of fered to di stribute addi ti ona
suppl enental information for clarification to the audit request
dated February 25, 2014.

6:52:16 PM

The committee took a brief at-ease.

6: 52: 45 PM

CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH br ought the conmittee back to order

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON explained that there were new proposed
regulations for the reinbursenent rate to private care
facilities by the Departnent of Health and Social Services which
substantially lowered these rates from $155 each day to $124
each day. He declared that, however, the proposed rei nbursenent
rate to the Pioneer Hones was increased from $155 each day to
$355 each day. He stated that inplenentation of this rate
change had been postponed until 2015. He reported that there
had not been an audit [of the Pioneer's Hone of Al aska] since
1999.

M5. CURTIS expressed her agreenent that the field work for the
previous audit had been conducted in 1999, with conpletion of
the audit in 2000.

REPRESENTATIVE OLSON listed his requests for the audit to
include the types of cost containment, a follow up on the
recommendations from the prior audit, and a review for the
current proposed rate setting to the Pioneer's Hones. He stated
that a reduction to the reinbursenent rates by $31 each day to
private care facilities with a substantial increase to the

BUD COWM TTEE -7- February 25, 2014



rei mbursenent rates of $200 each day to the Pioneer's Hone
"appears to ne to be a bit of a disparity, at best, and m ght be
sonething else.” He asked for clarification regarding this
disparity, as it would have a severe inpact on the snaller,
private care facilities and could lead to some of them going out
of busi ness.

6: 55: 03 PM

CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH asked if the audit request was clear, if there
was the capacity for conpletion, and, if so, in what tine franme
could conpletion of the audit be expect ed.

M5. CURTIS replied that the request was sufficiently clear to
nove forward with an audit. She asked for «clarification
regarding the tinme frane for reviewing cost containnent and
suggested a review of the previous two or three years.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON deferred to Ms. Curtis's judgnent, "as she
has far nore expertise than | do."

CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH asked the commttee for any suggestions to a
time franme for the audit regardi ng cost containnent.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER expressed his agreenment for M. Curtis's
assessment for two to three years; however, he suggested there
should be the latitude to review further than two or three years
if it was deened necessary for a nore in depth review

6:57: 02 PM

CHAIR FAIRCLOUGH clarified that the review would be for tw to
three years although there would be the flexibility to |ook
further if necessary.

SENATOR G ESSEL reported that the Admnistrative Regulatory

Review Commttee held a hearing during the previous fall, which
revealed that the private care facilities had nuch higher
acuity, much sicker patients than the Pioneer's Hones. She

asked for the audit to consider this during its assessnent of
t he di screpancy for reinbursenment rates.

6: 58:26 PM

M5. CURTIS asked for clarification that, as it was nore costly
to care for the sickest patients, the review should be for the

BUD COWM TTEE - 8- February 25, 2014



disparity to the lower rate for reinbursenent to the private
care facilities.

SENATOR G ESSEL expl ai ned that Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services had plans to raise the reinbursenent rate for the
Pi oneer Hone and reduce the reinbursenent rate for private hone
care. She reported that it had become evident during a hearing
on this [Adm nistrative Regulatory Review Commttee] that the
private care hones were caring for patients "of nuch higher
acuity, sicker folks, than the Pioneer Home and so that nade the
di sparity even greater in terns of the reinbursenent rates.”

M5. CURTIS, in response to Chair Fairclough, said that she would
draft an anmendnent adding this point and then post the audit
request with the approved anendnent on record.

7: 00: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked if the institutions were required
to keep sunmaries of costs and inconme to use for conparison.

M5. CURTIS expressed her awareness of the rate setting process
t hrough earlier work on federal conpliance, which had provided a
good basis for review and "who to talk to and if necessary, we
will expand the tine frane.”" She stated that this audit could
be assigned imrediately, although it would be difficult to
determ ne a conpletion date.

7:01: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER made a notion for approval to the audit
request, as revised, of the Alaska Pioneers Honmes operating
costs and cost containment. There being no objection, it was so
or der ed.

O her Commi ttee Business

7:01:56 PM

CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH announced that the final order of business
would be a request for contract funding by the Division of
Legi sl ative Audit.

V. CURTI S requested consideration and approval for two

contractual itens, as legislative procurenent rules required
that any contract entered into by the division which exceeded

BUD COWM TTEE - 9- February 25, 2014



$35,000 be first approved by the Legislative Budget and Audit
Conmittee.

M5. CURTIS requested approval to solicit and award a contract
for not nore than $100,000 for general audit services in support
of the Statewide Single Audit. She rem nded the commttee that
her division had asked for this approval in previous years, in
order to hire contract auditors to work under supervision by the
division to help finish the Statewide Single Audit. She pointed
out that, as the division had vacancies, this contract would
hel p control the work | oad.

M5. CURTIS asked that the Legislative Budget and Audit Commttee
approve a second request, to solicit and award a contract not to
exceed $150,000 for an informational technology (IT) audit of
the Departnent  of Health and Soci al Servi ces' Medi cai d
i nformati on system She reported that this system interfaced
nore than $1 billion into the State of Alaska accounting system
annual | y. She pointed out that, as this Medicaid system was
new, it was necessary for a conprehensive audit of its controls
to ensure its availability, confidentiality, and integrity. She
stated that her division did not have the IT expertise on staff
to conduct an audit of this mnmagnitude in accordance wth
audi ting standards. She explained that the contract would all ow
the necessary assurances to support the Conprehensive Annual
Financial Report in the Statewide Single Audit. She i ndicated
that there had been an increnent of $100,000 in the Fiscal Year
14 budget to conduct IT audits, and she asked for this sane
increment for FY 15, not to exceed $150,000, for the audit of
the Medicaid IT system

CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH asked if there were any questions regarding the
first request [audit services for assistance with the FY 14
Statewi de Single Audit] for $100, 000.

7:04:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER asked for clarification that this
recurring request for the $100,000 for general audit services
had been sufficient in past years.

M5. CURTIS replied that the request anmount was generated on a
per person basis, and would be for two or three people from a
private tax firmafter the tax season

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER asked if Ms. Curtis felt that this was an
adequat e amobunt to request.

BUD COWM TTEE -10- February 25, 2014



M5. CURTIS replied that it was adequate.
REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked how this contract was bi d.

M5. CURTIS, in response, explained that the rules for small
procurenent, under Legislative procurenment rules, required that
at least three solicitations to firns in the state be submtted.
She noted that "honestly, nost of the tinme we don't get nuch
response... mybe one or two will bid."

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked about the status for staff
vacancies in the Division of Legislative Audit.

M5. CURTIS, in response, stated "we have a very big problemwth
vacancies right now At our in-charge level, we have six budget
positions, one filled. A serious problem and we're doing a |ot
to fix it." She explained that these were lower |evel staff
positions, and that there were other resolutions proposed to
deal with the upper |evel vacancies. She stated that in-charges
were md to high level audit staff, and that this was an attenpt

to "fill the holes with what we know is out there.” She pointed
out that "it's a help, but it doesn't fix our problem wth
vacanci es. "

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked for clarification whether it
would still be necessary to request additional staff if the
current vacancies for five staff positions were fill ed.

M5. CURTIS acknow edged that she was unsure for the staffing
schedule if all the staff positions were fill ed. She decl ared
that the goal was to develop the current staff, and to pronote
from wthin. She said that there was not wusually a problem
filling the lower level staff positions; however, there was
attrition for the md-level staff, once there was novenent
toward attainment of the Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
i cense.

7:07:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether the state salaries were
conpetitive with the private sector.

M5. CURTIS declared that there were many contributing factors
and she offered her belief that the |ower salaries and the heavy
wor kl oad in her division were not conpetitive with oil conpanies
or other executive branch agenci es.

BUD COWM TTEE -11- February 25, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER rmade a notion for approval to the contract
solicitation request, not to exceed $100,000, by the Division of
Legislative Audit, for statewide single audit assistance. There
bei ng no objection, it was so ordered.

7:09: 06 PM

CHAIR FAIRCLOUGH directed attention to the second request by the
Division of Legislative Audit for an IT [information technol ogy]
audit of the Departnment of Health and Social Services new
Medi cai d system

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER asked for clarification that the request
was for outside contractual services to review the new Mdicaid
Managenment Information Systenms (MMS) and whether this was a
one-tinme request for this contractual spending. He asked if
this was necessary for the background and detail ed understandi ng
to conplete the Conprehensive Annual Financial Report for the
com ng year

M5. CURTIS explained that this would yield baseline know edge,
simlar to the know edge and understandi ng gained by audits for
earlier information service prograns. She noted that there were
new audit standards and requirenents for work between the group
auditor and the contract auditor. She offered her belief that
this would be a one-time contract request, although there were
expectations for Jlarge problens wth the system based on
earlier testinony to other legislative comrttees. She
expressed her belief that the initial wunderstanding for the
system woul d al | ow annual follow up, based on this know edge.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON stated his support, declaring that the
MMS "had a weak rollout” wth a "huge potential for problens”
and that, therefore, the request was prudent. He shared that
Xerox was sending 400 people to reduce the backlog [with the
MM S systen.

7:11: 45 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER rmade a notion for approval to the contract

solicitation request, not to exceed $150,000, by the Division of
Legislative Audit, for an audit of the new Mdicaid Managenent

I nformati on System There being no objection, it was so
or der ed.
7:11:58 PM

BUD COWM TTEE -12- February 25, 2014



CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH appoi nted Senator Fairclough, Senator 4 son,
Representati ve Josephson, Representati ve Aust er man, and
Representative Hawker to the subcomrittee in preparation for the
next performance review of the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Servi ces (DHSS). She rem nded the nmenbers of the subcommttee
for the performance review of the Departnent of Corrections,
Senator  Fairclough, Senator Bishop, Representative Hawker
Representative Herron, and Representative Kawasaki, about its
upcom ng public heari ng.

CHAIR FAIRCLOUGH, referencing an earlier request by Senator
French to hire an additional consultant for the gas tax, stated
that the consultant, R ck Harper, had been hired and his
contract was currently being finalized.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER asked how | ong the upcom ng public hearing
for Departnent of Corrections would |ast.

7:13: 24 PM

LAURA PIERRE, Staff, Senator Anna Fairclough, Al aska State
Legislature, in response to Representative Hawker, stated that
currently there had not been any requests to testify from the
publi c.

7:13: 50 PM

CHAIR FAIRCLOUGH noted that the conmttee had nmaintained its
guorumin order to conduct business.

7:14:13 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further Dbusiness before the conmttee, the

Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Committee neeting was adjourned at
7:14 p. m

BUD COWM TTEE -13- February 25, 2014



